




STERLING BIOTECH LIMITED
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2018
Particulars Note Asat

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rs. Lacs Rs.Lacs

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plantanc.l equipment 3 2,48,812.15 2,72,629.18
Capital work-in-progress 3 2,50,320.44 2,44,230.25
Financial assets

Investments 4 1,58,644.56 1,58,207.12
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 81,285.55 37,958.27
Other non-current assets 6 585.60 14,723.60

7,39,648.30 7,27,748.42
Current Assets
Inventories 7 6,092.96 70,330.16
Financial assets

Trade receivables 8 5,134_09 4,332.82
Cash and cash equivalents 9 911.40 1.263.26
Bank Balances other than above 10 417.07 429.54

Other current assets 11 35,510.81 31,405.00
48,066.33 1,07,760.78

Total assets 7,87,714,63 8,35,509.21

EQUITY ANDLIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 12 2,721.70 2,721.70
Other Equity 13 24,863.61 1,24,887.44

Total Equity 27,585.31 1,27,609.14

Liabilities
Non-current liabiHties
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 14 1,97 ,873.50 3,99,151.90
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Dorrowings 14 1,21,086.74 95,820.30
Trade Payables 15 2,070.34 3,789.80
Other Financial Liabilities 14 4,37,455.87 2,07,73117

Other Current Liabilities 15 1,642.85 1,406.89
5,62,255.79 3,08,748.17

Total liabilities 7,60,129.29 7,07,900.07

Total equity and liabilities 7,87,714.63 8,35,509.21

Accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. As per our re.port of even date attached.

As per our report of even date attached
For )HS & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.1332S6W /W100099

~J/)L_
Jignesh Thaker
Partner
Membership No. :107231

Place: Mumbal

Date: ~,~\tL'L0\ 8:

Signed without any liability for a mlnlstrativcpurpose only, as review
period is prior to appointment of nsolvency professional/ commencement
of corporate Insolvency resolution process.read wl~b .K!IICNo.33 & 34

Mr. Sundar,esh Bhat
Reg,. No,. lBBlflP,A-OOl/ ..
IP'-P00077/2,0 ,17- .10,/10'162



STERLING BIOTECH LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs.Lacs Rs.Lacs

Revenue from operations 17 35,972.74 40,018.95
Other income 17.1 550.06 397.70

Total income (I) 36,522,80 40,416,64

Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 18 23,787,39 25,860,60
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in- 19 1,363.48 1,485,48
progress
Excise DutyI GSTon sale of goods 739.43 3,176.39
Employee benefits expense 20 5,841.18 5,440.69
Finance costs 21 43,967,15 36,979,77
Depreciation & amortisation 22 24,574.79 26,354.78
Other expenses 23 2,831.56 2,798,43

Total expenses (II) 1,03,104,98 1,02,096.15

Profit/CLoss) before exceptional item and tax (I-II) (66,582,18) (61,679,50)
Less: Exceptional Item 29 77,229.33
Profit/Il.oss] before tax (1,43,811.51) (61,679,50)
Tax expense
· Current tax

· Deferred tax (43,273.00) (20,434.00)
Total tax expense (43,273.00) (20,434.00)

Profit/Il.oss) for the period (1,00,538,51) (41,245.50)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Net(Ioss)/gain on FVTOCIof equity securities 460.32 2,963.61
Income tax effect 54.28 (483.29)
Net other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified 514.60 2,480.32to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (1,00,023,91) (18,765.19)

Earning per equity share [Pace value ofRs.1/- each] 24
· Basic (36.94) (15.15)
· Diluted (36.94) (9.52)

Accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. As per our report of even date attached.

As per our report of even date attached
For JHS & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No.133288W /W100099

7I)t/!)z__
[ignesh Thaker
Partner
Membership No. :107231

Place: Murnbai
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STERLING BIOTECH LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended March 31,2018
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended

31 March 2018
Rs. Lacs

31 March 2017
Rs. Lacs

A) Cash flow from operating activities:

B) Cash flows from investing activities
(Purchase) of fixed assets
Sales of fixed assets
Sales / (Purchase) of investments
Interest Income on Fixed Deposit
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

(66,582.18) (61,679.50)

24,574.79 26,354.78
43,967.15 36,979.77

(26.83) (31.09)
(4.19) 0

(179.14) (22.07)
1,749.61 1,601.89

(625.78) (85.48)
1,177.20 1,422.87

(4,098.13) (4,525.27)
(1,483.49) 1,649.75
(3,280.60) 63.76

(3,280.60) 63.76

(946.47) (4,943.84)
4.85 16.05

0.12
26.83 31.09

(914.79) (4,896.58)

6,613.50 5,856.50

(2,769.96) (994.75)
3,843.54 4,861.75

(351.86) 28.93
1,263.26 1,234.33
911.40 1,263.26

Net Profit before taxation and exceptional items
Adjustments for
- Depreclation/arnortisation
-Interestexpenses
Interest Income

Prall t on sale of Fixe d Assets
Profit on Investments (Foreign Exchange Gain)
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movementin working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase )/Dccrease in Inventory
(Increase )/Decrease in Other Receivables
lncrease/j Dccrease] in Trade Payable (Current Liabilities)

Direct Tax
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (A)

C) Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Issue of Preference Shares
Proceeds from Share Premium on issue of shares
Proceeds/(Repayment) of borrowings and Interest
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (C)

Net tncrease/Idecrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes:
1. The Cash now has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS-7 on Cash Flow statement
2. Figures in bracket represents Cash Outflow.

Accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. As per our report of even date attached.

As per our report of even date attached
For IHS & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants';;}:;X:099
lignesh Thaker
Partner
Membership No. :107231

Sundaresh Bhat

Place: Mumbai

Date: \'~ \ P~\'_~~l

Signed without any liability for administrative purpose only, as review
pertod is prior to appointment of insolvency professlonalJ commencement
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the quarter ended 31 March 2018

a. Equity share capital

Equity shares ofRs.1/- each No. in lacs Rs. Lacs

5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00

2,758.94- 2,758.94
2,758.94 2,758.94

2,721.70 2,721.70
2,721.70 2,721.70

Rs. Lacs

Authorised
At 31 March 2017
At 31 March 2018

Issued and Subscribed
At 31 March 2017
At31 March 2018

Paid up (fully paid)
At 31 March 2017
At 31 March 2018

b Other Equity
Total Other

Reserves and Surplus Items orOCI EQuiIV

I Debenture I
Redemption Retained

Share Premium Reserve earnings FVTOCI reserve

For tile year ended 31 March 2018

As at 31st March 2017 1,00,133 4,982 -90,310 1,10,082 1,24,887

Profit for the year 0 0 '1,00,539 0 ·1,00,539
Exceptional Items (refer note 27) 27 27
Other comprehensive income 0 0 488 488
Total comprehensive income 0 0 -1.00,539 515 -1.00.024

Issue of share capital 0 0 0 0 °
As at 31 March 2018 100133 4,982 -1,90,849 1,10,597 24,863

As per our report of even date attached
For JHS & ASSOCiates LLP ...-::::~;::::.....
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 133288W /W100099

?JJ,IJ-
Jignesh Thaker
Partner
Membership No. :107231

Place: Mumbai )
Date: \:) ) 1 '1. ) <S

,
Reg. No. :r;Bllli A-OOII
J '-P00017j20. )'-lG/ 10162



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Corporate Infonnatlon

Sterling Biotech Lirutted (The Company') Is a public company domiciled In India and incorporated under Ihe provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 applicable in India. The
Equity shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) In India. The registered office of the Company Is located at
43, Atlanta Building, Narlman Point, Mumbal- 400 021, Maharasbtra, India.

The Company Is engaged in the manufacturing of Pbarma Grade Gelatine & Dl- Calcturu Phosphate and other Pharrua products. The Company bas presence In both domestic and
tmernartonal markets.

The Company was admitted 10 corporate Insolvency resolurton process ("CIRP") vide order of the National Company Law Trtbunal ("NCLT"), Mumbat Bench, dated June 11,
2018 (''In<olvency Corumenceruent Date") under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (·Code").(NCLT order dated June 26,2018 and taken over by RP
on June 27, 2018).

In accordance with the applicable provtstons of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 ("IBe/Code
Mr. Sundaresh Bhat havlne Registration No.JUBI/IPA·001/IPP00077/2017-2018/t0162 was appointed as the lntertru Resoluuon Professional ("IRP") to manage the affairs of
the Compaoy. Subsequently, Mr. Sundaresh Bbat was confirmed as the Resolution Professional ("RP") by the corurutnee of creditors ("CoC"). On appotnrment of the IRP/.RP, Ihe
powers of the Board of Directors of the Company were suspended.

2. Slgniflcant Accounrtng PolicIes

2.1 Basts of preparation

The financial stateruents of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) noufted under the Companies (Indian Accounttug
Standards) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared on a blsrortcal cost basts, except for Ihe followlug assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
~ Land and butldings classified as properly, plant and equipruent,
~ Certain financial assets and Itabthttes measured at fair value (refer accounring policy regarding flnanclal lnsrruments}.

All assets and liabililies have been c1assliled as current or non-current as per rhe Company's normal operating cycle and other crlterla sel out in the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the tlrue between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realisanon in cash and cash equtvalents, the Compaoy has ascertained
Its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current- non curren I classtftcanon of assets and liabilities.

2.2 Significant Accounrtng Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements In conformtry with generally accepted accouunng principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and lIabUltles and disclosure of conrtngeni ltabtltttes at the dale oftbe financial statements and the amount of revenues aod expenses during the reporting period end.
Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised 10 the period In which results are kuowuj'materlahsed.

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

All the property, plant and equipment are Slated at acquisition COSI,net of accumulated depreclallon and net cf irupalnuent losses, lfany. Cos. comprtses the purchase price and
any airrthutable cost of bringing the asset to Its working condition for Its intended use. Freehold laod Is not depreciated.

Subsequent expendliures related to an Item of property, plant and equipmenl are added 10 Its book value only If they Increase tbe future beueftts from the existing asset beyond
Its previously assessed standard of performance.

Hems of property, plant and equipment th.at have been rertred from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of thetr net book value aud net realisable value
and are shown separately In the fluauclal statements. Any expected loss Is recognised lrumedtately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loss arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment which are carried at cost are recognised In the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

2.4 Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis on the Straiglu Line Method (SLM) over the esttmated useful ltves of property, plant and equipment's considering the nature,
esttmated usage, operating condittons, past history of replacement, annctpated technology changes, etc. Cousidertng these factors, the Company bas decided to retain Ihe useful
life adopted for various categories of property, planl and equlprueut's, which are dlfferent from those prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation Is not
charged 00 capital work-tn-progress uotU consirucuon and Installation are complete and Is ready to be put to use.

2.5 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs direcrly attributable to the acquislrton, constructlon or production of qualtfytng assets, which are assets that necessarily lake a substantial
pe Mod of nme to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, unul such time as the assets are subsiannally ready for their Intended use or sale.
A!) 01her borrowing COSIS are recognised In Statement ofProOt and Loss in the perlod In wbich they arelncurred.

2.6 Impairment of non' financial assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet dare as to whether Ibere Is any Indlcatioo that an asset (tangIble and Inlangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing
trnpatrruenr, the smallest ldenrifiablc group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of IIre cash Inflows from other assets or group
of assets, Is considered as a cash generating unll. If any such Indication exits, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the assetj' cash generartng unit is made. Assets whose
carrying value exceeds rhelr recoverable amount arc written down 10 the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net-selling
price and lis value in use. Value In use Is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected 10 arise (rom the conrtnutng '1$ 91."u asset and from its disposal at the end of
lis useful llfe. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as 10 whether there Is any Indication that all impajrrnc,&'r~ rec~glJlsed for an asset in prior account lug
periods may 110 longer exts I or may have decreased. ;;:; ~ t\J.'
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2.7 Inventories

tnveruones are slated at the lower of cost and ne-t ft?alb;;.:ulev~\lIe. (,0'\1 Is <I/1~r",l[Pd IIsl0R r,)lP wej:::hted 8VE"rage-rosi (WAC) method. Tllt~ rosr of finishffi goods and work ill
rn:q;rrui roruprtsr-c raw m,{jlr.:rinl5.dlrect labour, other (1~I"(~rlcosts nnd rcl.nlr:d 'productlPlI vY~rhea.d..s..~ft rt'illi!_Jbll· value ts the estlmeted sellurg prlre tn the orriucrry fOU rse of
buslness, lee: Ih(' i5tlnmled C-dSi:lId( ccmpleucn 1lr.tllh ...~LftIIOh·<I costs n('f('osSlJlY10 Inak~ the sate.

2.8 Revenue Recogntrton

Sill-, of goods SoIf5 r,ft~ rccognlsed whvu the suhstantjnl risks ann rewards of ownership In the goods lil(' transferred 10 the buyer ItS per the torms (If the 1'0"ITacl and are
ret;v;:nised net of ttnde discounts. rebates and sales la:</ VA't JGST.

2.9 Other Income

InIHE'sl: Interest income is reooguised 011/1 lillie proportion basis taklllg lnto nccouut th« amount outslandln.g end the rate applicable.

Export Belltfit.s! The Company accounts for expert bf!llt?'fl~ I'fltltlenlenl~ under tht, Duty Entnlemem Pass Book Scllt"'illt' of Government of I Jl(III1,on accrual busts.

2.10 Foreign Currency Tr-anslatlon s

Forrl~t1 ell rreu-y ITill1S"?rtlvllSduring the year are r('c()rdnl nt the exchange ram pr('v.1III ng on tl,(~date of the transactions, E:<chsngc dltrerence all settlement of rransesttons of flxed
i1S$N~ ls rnpltnl ~Zl'{lwill! ncquls itfon ~·.ost ()f fj:o:e-dassets, The! halauce IL\'\L'hanzt! tluctu lit ion Is dUH.gC'·dtw l"(:\·,;lIue.Current Assets [1 lui Llnbllitles iil'l' trtl'JIS\Ht('II' (It yeflrd~l\d (.':<rhange
rah,s.

2.11 Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits payable to employees Is charged to revenue onacrlual hlls,is. Employer's cOlllrlbutlo[1 10Provident Fund Is. {l~Tt)unted for on accrual basts.

2.12 Employe. Benefits

e. Short TNm Employee beneflts

All Shon- term employee benelft plans such as selanes, wnges, bonus. special ewnrds and medlrul beurfits which Call due within 12 months of Ih(' period in which the employee
renders the related services which entitles him to avail such beneins ore recognised on so undisdo~7Xi hasts and charged '0 Hie Statement of Profit & Loss.

b. Deffned Contribution rlan

The company hM ill sterutory scheme of Provident Puud wlth the Regional Prcvident Fund Commissioner and contrlbuuon of the rompany Is charged to the Statement o( Profit &.
Loss Of! i'.{,frrlalllll~ls.

c. Defl ned Beneflt Pia"

The Company's lI'hlllty towards gratuity 10 Its employees Is covered by a group gratulty policy with Lie of lndia. Th .. contribution palrl / payable to LlC of lndta Is debited to the
statement of PmfJt & l,.<.""TSS{.lUnrrrnal basis. tl,inbillty towards 81'Htulcy is pll)vi(f(9~i on th~ h/T~~s (if [Ill nctUtHl.11 valuation using the Projected Unit CredH method and dehited to Ihl"
SIf,lti111wllt roll'Profit F...: Loss-on accrual bnsts. Thus ·fht1JrgL~ to the St~tf!11)t-!llt of prom & Loss includes prernlurn paid to 1.le. CUrf\"nf service l'OSI, interest (05t, exported return on plan
assets and gillnjloss In acruarlal valuatlou du ring the year, 1l(!1of fund value of plan asset as on the balance sheet date. Llablltry towards leave salary Is provided on actuerta! basis.

2.13 CUITCnt and deferred tax

Tax expense for the perfcd. comprtslng currenr tax sud deferred tax, are included in the detcrmlnatlon of the net proflt or loss for the period. Currem tax is measured at the amount
expected to be pnld to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation 18\\'$ prevailing in the r~pfJ{:t.iVt"~jurisdictions.

Deferred tax (or liming differences between rhe book prorns and l.u profits f!'l accounted for using the tm: riltES 8nd Imv·s lhllt haVtJ been ('IlRct£,d or subslAntively enarted as of the
Ralao("(' Shl"e' date. D,~fcrrl?\'i tax assets arising (rom the tll11f"H dl{f-orc-m'es Drr' rrcOZl1isC"d to tho e};(('1H thNO I~re.asullablf' c(:'rtllinty thol sutlkicout futu:,~ LJ~xable ihc.onle will be
available against whlrh s!lch drfC'frf'd til-I( a"s(,ls can be 17d.lIsPd. Deferred 14X assets are rl_7;:ognlsedfonax loss and deprr-cJatll)n cJlrrled fonvard to the extent that the realisation of
the rplnlt~d tax beilf'nt throngh till' fll~ure taXAble pru(llS Is virtually censln ;md Is sllppon~d by convincin~ f'vldC'nci:' that sufTicil'nl future ltIxable pronts Cltll be realised.

CUI"I-ent' tax a~·.mts ilJld current t8_X lIil.hnltles tU"{' orf5fi1 when tJll"'~ Is a l.q:ally ell[orceable right to set off the !~ItHerJ iinlou nts and thf'll} is au Inrl::lltioll 10 settle the .1S5Ct and the
ii8bility on a net basis. Defprf€'d tax asseL .. and defe.,-red la.'( lieiliillJ¥e:s8rt:! OffSi·t wilen thel~ Is a k:::ally enforce"3vle right 10 set off aSS...I!i againsf Ilabllilies representing current tax
Hnd whl:ri~ ,the flefNt','d t.lX <l5-s(!tsI1nd dc-ff'l'l"t~d tax liabilities relate to tax(I.s ou inrom(> levi\.d by Ih~" Sflnle governing t.axilti(J" lnws

2,14 Rese.."Irch~nd Development expenditure

RE:,\'nJl\lc I?xpendlhHt' Is chargl'~d to "thE>s:lateJI1(_>lltof Profit and! Los,:; In tJw pC'rjod in which It is incurred and is. ren0Cted under the appropriale heads of account Cflpltai
C':;':pendIUltie Is rlrbiled 10 fb!(id Assets and 'nepreciated &1 tlnplknble. rR.tl~S

2.15 Provisions and ContJngcnt Uabilitics

Provisinns~ Provision!) a!\""'f("Cng~JisNI whrm rh('n~ is ill prr"sent (ll)li~ittion as 8 result of a past event, It 'is prohabl(· thHt flUollHlow of rf'SUIln.:(':;emb/1c1ylng e<:onomic hpm:'(i!S w'ilI be
required to se.ttle the obllgfl.lion and th(Jw Is a rr'lIablp l!Stimate of the, Amounr of.he. obligation. provisions LIre measufed (It the Ul-st estimate ofth(~ e:-rpend,iture require to Scull-
present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted to its present valut:",

ConthlQf'llt lIobllltll:;S; Conrlnzetlt t.l.1bilitles are disclosed when there Is possible obllglition ariSing from pasl evenlS. the e:dsu~nce DC which will be connrilled only by the
o:..'f.'urrpuCI· or non O:.-iiurn"lTrHof on,' OTmOf(' 1I!1('crt9ln futun· f'Yf~n\Snot wholly '\lith In tht!' control of I·he Company or n IiW-3(!nlobllgnllon that arises [mrn past pv('nts whel\'~ it is
either not probable lhilt an out no, ...' of res.oun':C:i \'dll be required to seHlc or a rellilblc, eSJI.rrta!.C.of[lit. illPOU.JltcanlJQt be made.

2.16 Cash and Cash equivalents

In the cash flow statt'ment cash .md cash equivalent include ca~h In hand. demand ul11~.il'i wilh bailks and otDC'r ShOlt term highly Jlqu Id investmenlS.

2.17 EArning Per Share

The basic eArnings p~ S"hare Is computP.d by dividing thf' net pm(\t anrlhuli'.ble 10 f>quJty shareho!dcrs. for the period hy t.he wf'lghtect 8w·ragf!: number or f,'i1U ity shnlM oUl<;!.1n<iin,g
during the period. 111" r1Iumber of shal'l~s used in compulil1~ dHutpd' enrnlllgs per share compljS('~ thevilFiglned nverage sharE:S considered for derivin~ bask ~81·l"lili).\S p,·t-share t>nd'
,111So t1l1' w('iShf"}l11 nVCJifli;('nuO!br:1' ,(~fI'C}U Ity ShlltlPS wh leh w\')ul(J1l);wf' h.::'>(~11issued on tlle cOllver-siull of all dillltiv~ porll!ln~I:'l cqu,lty shal"~S:. Dllutive pCltnntial r;.'quity shares are
det!.iTtt'd wl·l\ferted as o( the In.'''rijnnlllg o( Ihe V~lr:jod unless lhey have bpen Issued at a 13fer date. ~ ~

;/' ,~
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2.18 Financial Instruments

A ftnanctal lnstruruent is any contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one enrtty and a flnanclal llabllity or equity tnstrurueni of another cnlily.

(i) Financial Assets

a) Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised lntttally at fail' value pius. In the case of ftuanctal assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cos Is that are atrributable
10 the acqutslrion of the financial asset Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention In the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, t.e., the date that the Company commtrs 10 purchase or sell the asset.

b) Subsequent Measurement

AUequlry Investments In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured al falr value. Equily instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acqulrer
in a business corubtnarion to which lnd AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity Instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive Income subsequent changes In the fair value. The Company makes such election on an tnstrumeut-by-Iustruruent basis. The classification is made on Initial
rerognluon and 15 Irrevocable.

If the Company decides 10 classify an equity Instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the tnsrruruent, excluding dtvtdends, are recognized in tile OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OClto P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulauve gain or loss within equlty.

c) Derecognitlon

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset 01' pari of a group of similar financial assets] is primarily derecognlsed (i.e. removed from the Company's
balance sheet) when:
....The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
.... The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset

d J Impairment of financial assets

In accordance wlth Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of trnpatrment loss on the financial assets and credit
risk exposure. The Company follows 'Simplified approach' for recognition of irupairruent loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes In credit risk Rather, il recognises trnpatrruent loss allowance based on ltlertme ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its lnttial recogntrton.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash Oows that are due to tlie Company in accordance with the coutracz and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
[t.e. net cash shortfalls], discounted at the original EJR.

Equity Insrruruems measured al FVTOCI: Since flnanclal assets are arrcady reflected at fair value, Impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather. ECL
amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' In the OCI.

(II) Financial LIabilities

aJ Initial RecognItion and Measurement

Ftnanclal llabllltles are classified, at Initial recognitlon, as Anancialliabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives deslguated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial ltabtlittes are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loanv and borrowings and payables, net
of direclly artrlbutable iransacuon costs. The Company's Ananclal l1ablllNes Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings Including bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative fluanclal tnsrrumems,

b) Subsequent Measu rement
The measurement of financial Ilabtltttes depends on rhetr classtftcattou, as described below:

loans & Borrowings - After Initial recognition, Interest-bearing leans and borrowings arc subsequently measured at amorttsed cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised In Profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognlsed as well as through the EIR aruorttsatton process. Amorttsed COSI Is calculated by laking Into account any
dlscount or premium on acqutsitton and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The ElR amornsanou is included as ftnauce costs In the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings,

c) Derecognition

A financial liability Is derecognlsed when the obllgarlon under the ltabihty 15 dlscbarged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financlal llahtltty ls replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially dlfferent terms, or the terms of an existing llahtllry are substanrlally modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognllion of a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts is recognised In the statement of profit or loss.

d) Offsetting of Flnanclal f nsn-uments

Financial assets and financial ltabtlnles are offset and the net amount Is reponed In the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there I. an Intention to settle on a net basis, 10 realise the assets and sell Ie the liabilities simultaneously.

2.19 Fair-Value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid
to transfer a Ilabtltry In an orderly rransacuon between market parttctpants at the measurement date. The fair value rneasureruent Is based on the presumption that the
transacuon to sell the asset or transfer the Habf Hty takes place either.
- In the principal market for the asset or liability. or
- In rhe absence of a principal marker, In the most advantageous market for the asset or Ilablllry



3. Property. Plant and Equipment Rs. Lacs
Pnr-rlculnrs Land & Leasehold Land Buildings Plant & machinery om« Vehicles 1'01011

i\S 0131 March 2017 3,414.90 6,377.90 35,427.37 2,79,425.59 1,932.80 2,174.74 3,28,753.30

Addition, 19.54 661.69 29.35 47.84 756.42
DispnS"als 1.37 1.37

As.t 31 Morch 2018 3,414.90 6,377.90 35,446.91 2,UO,UH7.28 1,962.15 2,221.21 3,2Y',,~ 10.35

Depreclauon
As at 31 March 2017 165.11 3,836.44 49,993.23 1,271.89 635.47 56,124.14

For the yonr 67.31 1.707.03 22,310.72 178.27 311.44 24,574.77

Disposals 0.71 0.71

As 0131 March 2018 252.42 5,545.47 72,303.95 1,450.1'6' 1,146.20 60,696.10

Net Book Value
As.t31 March201B 3.414.90 (,)25.48 ~~,,')OIA4 2.07.783.33 511.9'1 1.075.01 2,48,812.15

Asa13! Mal'en 2018 3.414.90 6.125.48 2~'.90('44 2,07,7B~.33 511.99 1)075.01 2,48,812.15

Net Book Value As at

31 March 201 U 31 March 2017
Rs. Lars; ~..!:£..._

Property. Plant and Equipment 2.40.812.15 2.72 .G2ry.IB

Capital Work In Progress 2.50.32(1,44 2.44.230.25

The rompeny CWIP of Rs,2S(l,320.4~ lacs as 81 31·03'·2018 romprtses of expend nure lnsurrud Oil setting or new mnlmf~ctl' ring f.:H~ilily ,01 Bharuch dislri\.T and ....mount
lnr-u rx-d over several year is largely comprises of capital expenditure. borrowing cost. Foreign exchange variance or foreign ru rreucy loans. pre-operative expenses and
other related oxpr-nses.

4. Non-current Investments As at

lnvestrnents at FVTOCI
lnvestmcuts In MUtU011 Fund-
lnvestrn.-nts in Shares rQIIC.lttd)
Investments In Shares (U nquoted]
Natlonal Savl ngs Certiffcste

31 Marrll20lB
Rs. Lacs

31 M.,,·lt'OI7
Rs. Lacs

188.54
53.46

1.58.402.00
U.S(,

168.99
56.76

1.57,9·gn.BI
0.;;6

Total .1,58,644.56 1,58,207.12

Schedule of Investment

4.1 Par-ticulars 31 Mardi 20lB 31 March 2017
Rs. Lett'S ~~~

27.76 24.97
B3.96 73.53
52.17 47.99
21.65 22.50

188.54 168.99

3.15 4.19
5031 52.57
53.47 56.76

8.65 B.62
9.42 9.90

IJ'n.s:l U92.22
1,39.133.24 1.39.101.53

15.512.05 IS.1n6.u2
1.136.11 1.132.52
U50.00 1150.00

1,58,402.00 1,57,980.82

Investment In Mutual Funds

lm 8aslc Fund-Growth Pis"
[m Core 11 Fund-SHips I
Jm Multi ~trak;;y Fund-Growth Plan
1.&T India Lal"AZ' C;-lP Fund-Growth
Total

Investment in Equity Shares - Quoted

Rella nee Power LI01Ired
Transwarre nty Finance Lhultcd
Total

Investments [n Shares [Un-quored l

Share-Atlautlc Bluewater Services
Share-artush Oil & Gas Exploration LId.
Share - St[>din~ OJ] Resources Limited
Share - StprllnR Port Limited
Share - Str-rt ing SE"l & lnfrasrrucrure Prfvste Ltd
SEEPeO BVI
Shtmntt Utsch Indio P.~td.

The Mutual funds and Quoted Equity Share-s are traded in active markets and fair value are based on quoted market prices (It the 31 March 2018.

IlJe 0 1J'll!oted EQu!ty Shares are lnvestmants made 10 Comp.Dnles which a 111' u~g;;16nl~cd i]li; related parttes. c:-xC(iplShtmnlt Utsch India P.Ltd .. The said investments are not
traded In an ecuve market

5. Deferred Tax Asser (net) As at

31 Marth 2018
Rs. Let-s

31 March 2017
Il.s. [1.<1(5

Deferred Ta x Asset/(Llabillty)
Deferred Tax Liability recognised In f'VTOCI

Totol

U2,458.99
(31.173.44)

69.185.99
(31.227.72)

Bl,20S.55 37,956.27

•
l ~

J _ -: 't
l' 'r



6. Other Non-current assets As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rs. Lacs Rs. ~("'"

Opening Balance 14.142.80 16,238.03
Add; CApitAlise,1during tlie pertcd
Less: Amortisedf\Vritten off durtng the period 14.14280 2,095.23

Deposits 5f35,6{)l 580.80

Closing Balance 585.60 .114; n·l.60

lnltially. dunlug the year 2013, the Company has {.Ic·dd\:,c.\ito develop an Improved process of manufacturing of Gelatin with hir,iler yii"Jd and effective colors nud viscosity. whlch is
typically high for high Bloom ~cl ru-ins. to retn In higher profits rtnd sales realisation from it. The ill temartonel stu nda rds are also berourtna srrrngenr and more demandtnp In terms
of parameters. The Company Is always huprovlng its product und Irs a conrtnucus '\::_ff'OTI. Cousldcrf ug the same. the COJllP;lIIYhils ldcurifled the new prorr-s s for prnpllTr Ph.
Moisture control.lesser ASh.Control Sulpher- c(J)llxlde content (S02}. arreptable rntcrobtologtcul propertiesand accordingly charucd the hone and the same was lying In rhe process
with various utillch!S' application as Work In P~~!I<!Il .togto for development to improvise yield and technical properties, wlnle gelatin is very stable ill irs gc·r form. various fl;lc1.OrS'
such as pH, 't'l'!'1iweriltun~ or brrcturtal «nvtronrnent may causs an hydrc.)lysi~ or the prctetn chain yielding not only a decreased vtscostry but also a decrease ill Bloom. However, the
company continued to invest: the funds in inventory or Bone. l.trne. Hel" and uttlntes in work In process stage as the improvement seen at work in process stage was: highly
eTlf;our:fgiilg and.tlll? technical team of the Company was convinced thnt the development Is in rl~hr direction.

DurillS the yeilr 2014, due to the striugr-nt pollution control norms (or ETP plane tbl1 Company was Iorvod' to keep material for longer period of even more than 2~10days
Resultant ion the. process, tnsrcnd of development of better OS:;,lOIl, all g<.datinlicked up durlng lhnlng process. Oss.cn was lying without any other process and limhlg uI3ot'i(;>n was
continued, Accordingly. Company was forced to take decision to dispose off the material without further cxtrucncn of Gelatin to avold conrarntnurton.

The Company had lJ(-cn l':1rlier amortizing the carrying value over a period of 10 years. However. In the current year, the Company has written off the balance outstanding under
exrr-prtonal Ite rns.

7. Inventories As at
31 March 2018 31 M'arch,2017

Rs. Lncs as ,.'01:5

1.(J9hliJ 1.057.38
2,&74.87 67,266.73

n"fl.17 6'Ju.13
1.463.73 1,307.91

6.Q?2.96 70,330.16

As at

Jl Match 2018 31 March 2017
Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

18.6g 5.46

5,115.40 4,3Z7.36

S,.l.3~,09 4,332.82

As at
3'1'M'ore!;2018 31 March 2017

Rs_. l.acs Rs. Lacs.

40.31 27.44

871.09 1.235.83

')11.40 1,263.26

As at
]1 March '2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

417,07 429.154

417,07 429.54

As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rs.~IT,;::s Rs. Lacs

1 ,943.50 1.128.75
?:~..r;67.:n 30.276.25

35,510.81 31,40~j)O

Raw Materials
Stock in Pro,'(~"
Stores & Spare, parts
Finished Goods

Tolal

8. Trade Receivables
(U nsecured. Considered Good)

Outstanding for a period (?XJ.~(ff!dlng slx months from the date
they are due for payment
Other receivables

Total

9. Cash and Bank Ilalances

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with ba nks

In Current Account

Tolal

10 Bank Balances other than above

Fixed Deposits ( Margin MO"llL~Yunder lterr to
bank and Debt service reserve account)

11. Other current assets

Balance with Excise & Other Government Authortttes
Advanre Iftyov('nlble in cash or kind or for value to b,' rr-cotved

Total

Advaneo recovorcblc in cash orklnd Includes amount of Rs. 28,636.40 lacss as at :n-03-2DH~. these are I!l1oL"opcnlngbelnnccs rarrted forward from prior years. Company is
auerrmuug to get the details of these loans and advances and only upon compilation of information one can make the assessment or recoverabtlity /non- recoverabillty ofthes€
anrounrs



.12. Equity Share Capital No. in Lacs Rs. Lacs

Authorised Share Capital
50,00,00,000 Equity shares of Ro.l/- aach
AI31 March 2017 5,000.00 5,000.00
Jncrease/Idecrease) during the year
At 31 March 2018 5,000.00 5,000.00

Issued and Subscribed
27,58,94,388 Equity share of Ro.l/. each
At 31 March 2017 2,758.94 2,758.94
lncrease/Idecrease) during the year
At 31 March 2016 2,758.94 2,758.94

Paid-up (fully paid)
27,21,70,388 Equity 'hares of Rs.t/- each
AI31 March 2017 2.721.70 2,721.70
lncrease/Idecrease) during the year
At 31 March 2018 2,721.70 2,721.70

Righrs, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value ofRs.l/· per share. Each shareholder of equity share is entitled for one vole per share held. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after dlstrtbutton of all preferential amounts, In proportion to their
shareholdt ug.

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2018
No.ln Lacs %holdlng

As at 31 March 2017
No. In Lacs %holding

Equity shares of Rs.l/- each fully paid
Albula investment Fund Limited
Lotus Global Invesrmeurs Ltd-Adr/Gdr

159.63
139.48

5.87%
5.12%

159.63 5.87%
139.48 5.12%

As at

31 March 2018 3] March 2017
Rs_ Lacs Rs.Lacs

1,00,133.08 1,00,133.08
4,982.14 4,982.14

(80,251.(>1) 19,772.21.

24, !!llilc£! 1 1,24,887.44

13. Other Equity

Share Premium Accouut
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Retained Lu-nlngs

Total

Refer statement of'change In other equity for movement in components oral her equity.



14. Borrowings

Non-Current borrowings
Secured
(Secured by way ofllrst charge on Fixed Assets oftbe
company, on part passu basis)

Term Loans from Banks

External Commercial Borrowings

Unsecured
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2019
[Aggregatlng to USD 201,082,000
(31 March 2018; USD 201.082,000)

8% Redeemable Cumulative Non-Participating Non-
Convertible Preference Shares carrying no voting rights of
Rs.10;' each

Preference Share application money peudlng allotment

Total

As at

31 March 2018
Rs. Lacs

31 March 2017
Rs. Lacs

77,513.15

1,30,378.75

1,97,873.50 1,91,250.50

1.50

1,97,873.50 3,99,151.90

1.The summery ofFecss due 2019 arc as under;
i) The FCCBs carry a 0% coupon with a yield of5.43% per annum (calculated on semi-annual basts).
ill The FCCBs will mature on March 25, 2019.
ill) The FCCBs are convertible Into equity shares of the Company. The outstanding FCCSs are USD 201,082,000.
iv) The FCCSs are convertible at any time after May OS, 2014 at" conversion price of Rs, 60.00 per share with fixed rate of exchange on conversion of Rs, 4B;' per USO.

v) The FeC8s are admitted for trading on the Euro MTr market of Luxembourg Stock Exchange,

2. The Company has only one class ofUnltsted 8% Redeemable Cumulative Non-Paritctpattng Non-Convertlble Preference Shares redeemable at the end of15 years from the
date of allotment, carrying no voting rights, of face value of 10/- each issued at par on private placement basis 10 Promoter Group & Associates whether or not they are
member(s) of the Company.

Accumulated dividend all proportionate basis of Issued Preference Shares as on balance sheet date amounts to Rs.51761.45 Lacs Is not provided for.

Current borrowings
Working Capital Borrowings from Banks
(Secured by way offirst charge on Current Assets and second
charge On fixed assets of the company, on pari passu basis)

interest accrued and due on working capital borrowings

Short Term Loaus from Banks

Total

As at

31 March 2018
Rs. Lacs

31 Marcb 2017
Rs. Lacs

60,759.34 SO,40B,44

32,500.09

27,827.31

22.697.81

22,714.06

1,21,086.74 95,820.30

1. Interest rates on Working capital Borrowings from Banks vary in the range of13.65% p.a. to 19.00% p.a. (linked with BPLR/MCLR). The said loans are repayable on demand
and also secured by way of first charge on current assets of the company and second charge on the Ilxed assets of the Company, on pari passu basis. Part of the said loans arc
additionally secured by way of a personal guarantees of the two Promoter Directors of the Company.

2.1uterest rate applicable on the Short Term Loans from Banks during the year were in tbe range of13.25% to 15% p.a.

Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturities of long term borrowtugs
{Including interest accrued and duel

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2019

(Aggregating to USD 201,082,000
(3] March 2018: USD 201,082,000)

Term Loans from 8anks

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

External Commercial Borrowings
a) ECB 2009 agp;r~gatlng USD 45,374,591

(March 31, 2018: USD 45,374,591)
b) ECB 2010 aggregating USD 114.749,455

(March 31, 2018: USD 114,749,455)

Derivative Loss payable
Total

Asat
31 Marclt 2018

Rs. Lacs
31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs

1,30.792

1,22,036.00

73,329.65

39,079.49

63,902.59

29,513.49 27,685.95

74.637.75 69,260.53

7,146.99 7.802.61
4,37.455.87 2,07,731.17



1. Interest rates on Rupee term loans from banks vary in the range of11.4% p.a.to 16.35% p.a. (linked with BPLR/MCLR). These loans are secured by first pari passu charge on
Ftxed Assets of the Company. Pari of the said loans are also secured by way of second charge on the current assets of the Company, both present and future, on pari passu basis
and/or the personal guarantees of the Promoter Directors of the Company.

2. Interest rate on Redeemable Non-Converrtble Debentures is 12% wilh additional 2% p.a for defaulting period. The said debentures were redeemable In 20 quarterly
Installments starling from November 05, 2010 and last Installment due on August 05, 2015. The said debentures are Secured by first charge On pari passu basis on entire
immovable and movable properties of the Company offering minimum Fixed Asset Coverage Ratio of'l.25 times during the tenure of debentures.

3. lnierest rates on External Commercial Borrowings 2009 is 6 months L1BOJt~375 bps. They are secured by first pari passu charge Oil all immoveable and moveable Ftxed
ASSCISof the Company second charge on rhe current assets of the Company, both present and future, on pari passu basis. The same are repayble in 9 balfyearly Installment after
moratorium of30 months from date of dlsburseruent,

4_ Interest rates on External Commercial Borrowings 2010 is 6 months L180R +475 bps. Tbey are secured by first pari passu charge 0]) all immoveable and moveable Fixed
Assets of the Company second charge on the current assets of tbe Company, both present and future, on pari passu basis. The same are repayble in 12 half yearly tustallment
after moratorium of23 months frOIDdate of dis burs emem.

5. The company has executed Rupee Term Loan Agreemenl on January 09, 2015 with certain lenders including ECB lenders under obligor co-obligor structure for Iacillrles
granted to domestic group companies of Sandesara Group to which Company belongs. Accordingly, the securirtes and future cash flows are charged 111 favour of the lenders
partlclpatlng In Obligor co-obligor structure and the Interest rate for faclltrtes extended by these lenders is at 12% p.a.

6. The Company defaulted In repayment of loans and borrowings to the hanks and flnanclal tnsttturtons during the year and the Company has also defauhed In repayment of
dues to debenture-holders during the year. Pursuant to the continuing defaults of the Company, a corporate Insolvency resoluuon process ("CJJtP") under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 was inttlatetl agalnst the Company vide an order of the Murubai Bench of the National Company Law Tr-ibunal ("NeLT") dated 11 th June, 2010. Owing to
the inillation ofCIRP, the borrowings are considered currently payable and therefore, classified under other ftnanctal ltabtltrles as 'current maturtnes oflong term borrowings'.



15. Trade payables and Other Current LIabilities As <II
31 March 2018 31 March2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

Trade payables 2,()70.34 3,709.80
Other curreut llabllltles 1,642.87 1,406.89

Total 3,713.21 5,196.69

16. Contingent liabilities (to the extent notprovlded for) As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 122.35 108.47
capita I account
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(I) Excise Duty & Servtce Tax 4,192.54 4,090.39
(II) Sales Tax 296.71 296.71
(Iii) income Tax 33,8133.34 6,078.40

17. Revenue Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

Sa Ie of Finished goods 35,233.32 40,018.95

Revenue [rom operations 35,233.32 40,018.95

17.1 Other Income Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lace Rs. Lacs

Sales Miseellenous 86.98 60.86
Export Incentive and Duty Draw back 260.97 173.46
Interest Earned 102.46 77.09

Other Income 99.65 86..29
550.06 397.70

18 Cost of material consumed Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lac.

Opening Stock 1,755.51 1,692.90
Add: Purchases 23,973.68 25,923.21

25,729.19 27,616.11
less: Ciosl ng Stoc k 1,941.80 1,755.51

Total 23,787.39 25,860.60

19 Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs R5. Lacs

Inveotory at the end of the period
Finished goods 1,463.73 1,307.92

Work In-progress 2,674.87 67,266.73
1,138.60 68,574.65

lnveneory at the beginning of the period
Finished goods 1,307.92 1,090.89
Work-tn-progress 67,266.73 68,969.24

68,574.65 70,060.13
Less- Prior Period Expen se s 63,072.57

5,502.08 70,060.13

(Increase)(decrease in inventory 1,363.48 1,485.'118

20 Employee benefits expense Year ended Year-ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

Salaries, Wages & Bonus 5,292.40 4,899.32
Contrlbutlon to Provident Fund & Other funds 427.39 257.19
Staff Welfare expenses 121.39 284.18

Total 5,641.18 5,440.69

Managerial Remuneration (Included above) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs, Lacs

Salary (Including 00nu5) 8.00 24.00

;Y fjv"'b .... 1
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21 Finance Cost Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs
Interest expense on debts and borrowings 43,936.68 36,719.57
Balik Cbarnes and Commission 0.54 18.88
Otber Finance COSI 21.15 240.75
Other Interest 0.78 0.57
Total 43,967.15 36,979.77

22 Depreciation and amortisation Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

R<. I.~cs Rs.Lacs

Depreclatton on flxed assets 24,574.79 24,259.55
Amortisation of Non- current Assets 2,095.23

Total 24,574.79 26,354.78

23 Other expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

Repair & Maintenance: Buildings 60.01 7.74
Repair & Maintenance: Plant & Machtnery 775.40 662.47
Travelling & Conveyance 352.06 418.30
Telephone & Telex 50.93 65.31
Prinrtng & Stationery 18.39 27.51
Postage, Telegram & Courier 16.26 15.77
Office fixpenses 1,071.77 1,189.63
Audit Fees 8.75 8.63
Seiling & Dtsrrtburton Expenses 477.98 403.08

Total 2,831.56 2,798.43

Auditors Remuneration

Audll Fees 7.00 4.00
Tax Audit Fees 1.75 1.50
Taxation and other matters 2.00
GST/Servtce Tax 1.13

Total 8.75 8.63

24 Earnings per share (EPS) Year ended Year ended
31 M~rd. 2018 31 March 2017

Rs. Lacs R s. Lacs

a. Total Loss for the period (1,00,538.52) (41,245.50)
b. Nomioal value of each Equity share (Rs.) 1.00 1.00
c. Weighted average No. of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 2,721.70 2,721.70
d. Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (a/c) l~b.'J4) (1~.1~)
e. Welgll1ed average No. of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS 4,330.36 4,330.36

Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) (a/e) (23.22) (9.52)

25 Foreign Currency Earnings and Expenditure Yearendeu Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Rs.lacs ns. Lacs

a. FOB vaJue of Exports 7,854.36 4,507.02
b. CIF Value of'Imports 205.48 142.08
c. Other Expenditure 57.14 1,569.82

26 Segmental Reporting

The company's opera lions rail under single segment and there are no reportable segment. In accordance wllh Ind AS 10800 'Operanng Segments'.



27 Flnandallnstruments

27.1 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capual management, capital Includes Issued equity capital, share premium and all other equtty reserves anrfburable to the equlry holders of
tbe Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital tuanageruent Is 10 maximise the sharebolder value.

The Company manages Its caplial structure and makes adjustments In IIghl of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To malnlaln or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new sbares.

27.2 Categorization of Financial Instruments

Particulars As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs

1,58,644.56 1,58,207.12

5,134.09 4,332.82
911.40 1,692.81

35,510.81 31,985.80
4-],556.30 38,011.43

1,97,873.50 3,99,151.90
1,21,086.74 95,820.30
4,37,455.87 2,07,731.17

2,070.33 3,789.80
1,520.90 1,406.89

7,60,007.34 7,07,900.07

(i) Financial Assets
(a) Investments al FVTOCI (note 4)
(b) Measured al Amortised COSI

Trade receivables [uote 8)
Cash and cash equivalents (note 9)
Other current assets [note 10)

(II) Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost

Borrowings (Non· current) [note 13)
Borrowings (Current] [note 13)
Other Flnauctal liabilities [note 13)
Trade Payables [note 14)
Other Current Liabilities [note 14)

27.3 Financial Rlsk Management Objectives

The Company's acrlvlrtes expose II to a vartery of financial rtsks: market risk, credlt risk and ltquldlry risk The Company's priluary focus Is 10 foresee the unpredtctabtlity of the
financial markets and seek to minimize the potential adverse effects on Its financial performance.

(i) Market Risk

Markel risk Is the risk that the fair value of furure cash flows of a financtal tnstrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Markel risk comprises three types of
risk: Interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such corumodtry price risk. Ftnanclal Instruments affected by market risk Includes trade receivables, deposits and
current Investments.

(II) Interest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk Is tbe risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes io market interest rates. The Company have long
term debt obltgatlon hence highly affected by Interest rates (luctuartons. The mark to market valuation of us portfolio is Impact by flucruauon of lite Interest rates.

(Ill) Foreign currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fatr value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because ofcbanges In exchange rates. The Company has an imernational
business and some part of lIS sales are In foreign currencies which exposes to changes In foreign exchange rates. Fluctuarlng rupee can impact the realisation of lis receivables.
The maximum export sales are done on advance payment basis and outstanding export receivable are not Instgmficant. However, the foreign currency loans will have a
Significant impact on the Company's foreign currency risk.

(iv) Commodity Price Risk

The Company is affected by the price volatllity of lis key raw materials. lis operattng activities requires a continuous supply of key material for manufacturing of Gelatine and
pharrua products. The Company's procurement department continuously monitor the fluctuation in price and take necessary action 10 minimise lis price risk exposure.

(v) Credit Risk

Credil risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet Its obhganons under a financial Instrument or cusroruer- contract, leading to a financial 1055.The Company is exposed 10
credit risk from lIS operating activities (prlrnarily trade receivables) and from Its treasury operation. The Company majorly sells lis goods on advance payment basis and hence
1101subleci 10 credit risk for liS receivable s.

(vi) Llqutdlty Risk

As of March 31,201 B, the Company has working capltal of Rs. lOB, 121.70 lacs (current assets of Rs.l OB,121.70 lacs Including cash and cash equivalents of Rs.l.328.47 lacs).
The Company has outstanding bank borrowings or Rs. 354,420.97 lacs as working capital borrowings, short term loans and CUITenl maturlrtes of long term loans. Accordingly,
the high Itqutduy risk Is perceived. " fl.t../
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27.4 Fair Value Measu rement

The management assessed that fair value of loans, cash and casb equlvalenrs, trade receivables, trade payables and other current lIabUltles approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these lnsrruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities Is Included at the amount at which the iustruruent
could be exchanged In a current rransacrlon between willing parties, otherthan Iu a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to esrlmate
the fair values.
i) The fair value of un quoted instruments are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and 115 tnvesiraents railing.
II) The fair values of the quoted Instruments are based on price quota lions at the reporting date.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determtntng and disclosing the fair value of nnanclal Instruments by valuation technique.
level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for Identical assets or )labUltles.
level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect Oil the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or lndlrcctly.
level 3: techniques which use Inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based OD observable m ..rkel.~am
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, 28 Related Party Disclosure

A Names of Related Parties and relarlonshlp

I) Details of Key Manageruenl Personnel

Mr, Nilln j, Sandesara
Mr. Chetan ], Sandesara

Managing Director
jolnl Managing Dtrecror

II) Enterprises in which slgnlficant tnfluence Is exercised by Key Managemenl Personnel

Sieriing SEZ and Infrastructure Llrulted
Sterling 01.1Resources limited
Sterling Port Lnuued
Sterling Internattonat Enrerprises Limlled
PMT Macluue s Limited
Atlanttc Bluewater Services Pvc LId,
Brtush 011 & Gas Exploration LId,
Sterllng Exploration & Energy Productton Co, Lid,
Sterllng 011 Explorarton & Energy Production Co. Lid,

B, The aggregate amount of transaction with the related parties Is as below

Particulars Nalure of Iran sac lion Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018

Rs. Lacs
31 March 2017

ltl_l ....cs

2

Mr. Chelan j. Sande sara

Srerltng SEZ and Infrastructure Limlled

24.00

170,69

Reruunerauon 8.00

170,69Lease rent and mainlenance charges
Loa os & Adv~ nces

Maximum amount outstaudtng 0,60

40,00
40.55

0,78

0,51
(367,70)

3 Sterllng Pori L1mlled Loans & Advances
Maximum amounl outstanding

loans & Advances
Maximum amount outstanding

Loans & Advances
Maximum aruouru ou ISlanding

luvestruent

(465,00)

4,875,00
500,00

9,900,00
4.97
5,46
6,97

4 Sterllng 011 Resources l.lmned
(1,217,00)

5 PMT Machines Limiled 105,00
105,00

4,875,00
500,00

9,900,00
4,97
5,46
6,97

6 Sterling SEZ and lnfrastructure Llrutted
7 Slerllng 011 Resources Ltmtted
8 Sterllng Pori Limlted
9 Arlanttc Bluewater Services Pvt. Lid,
10 Brltlsh 011 & Gas Exploration Pvt. LId,
11 Sterllng Explorauon & Energy Produclion Co,

LId.

12 Sierttng SEZ and Infrastructure Llml1ed
13 Sierling Pori Limlled
14 PMT Machtnes Ltmltcd

Preference Share Capual
[Incl. Appln Money)

22,928.50
1,38,240,00

30,090.00

26,126.50
1,30,240,00

33,507,00

15 The company has executed ANZ SBLC faclli1y Agreement on September 30, 2015 wttb certatn lenders as co-obligor under the Al'lZ SBLC Facility ofUSD 560 Mn. granted 10
Sterling Global 011 Resources Private Limlled, Maurltlus 10 avail ANZ FC facility of U5D 544 Mn, by Sterling Exploration and Energy Producrton Company LimHed, BV!.
Accordlugly, all tanglble and tntangible movable and Immovable assets oflhe Company, both present aod future, are charged lu favour of the lenders partlclpattng III ANZ SBLC
Factltry, ou parl- passu basis with extsrlng charge holders.

29 Exceptional Items

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Forelgu exchange fluctuation loss of prior period'
Inventory
Mise Expenditure

26,53

63,060,00
14.H2H@

"Exceptional lIems I..elude Foreign Exchange fluctuation loss ou Valuation of lnvesrmenrs at fair market Value amounrlug 10 Rs. 26.53 lacs pertains 10 year ended Marcll·2017
on Iuvesrments held 10Foreign Companies which have now been transferred from other comprehenstve income

30 Dues to micro and small enterprises

Based 00 the informal ion received by the Company from vendors regarding their status under tbe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (The ACI) there
are no aruoums due 10 such vendors during tbe year and as at the year end, Therefore, disclosure required under the Act have not been given,

~ i~.~~ 4·
aft.,~r"l~



3J Malenal Changes affecling the Financial Poslrlon of the Company:

Search and seizure operatton of lite Company was conducted DYuie officials of the Directorate of Enforce men I allis offices in Vadodara and Mumbai on 051h Aug"SI, 2017.
During the operation many books and docuruents of company was seized by the officials.

The company Is currenlly under "Corporate Insolvency Resolullon Process" as per the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by the order ofNCL T dared 111h
June, 2018. This has r esulted In suspension of powers of the Board of Directors of the company and therefore no Board Is available and hence Ihe authortty now rests wi lit Mr.
Sundaresh Bhall (baving Insolvency Professtonal Regtsirauon No.IBBI/IPA·001/JP.P00077/2017·2018/10162) as Ihe Resolution Professional (RP) ofSlerllnR Biotech
Llmlted, Also, lnvestlgatton Is going on in the company by Enforcement Directorate (ED), Central Bureau oflnvesllgalion (CBI) and Serious Fraud Invesllgaion Office (SFlO).).
On 291h May 20181he Enforcement Dlrecrorate bas attached the properties of the company.

Flrsllnformallon Report under Sec 154 Cr.P.C suspecting criminal conspiracy and abuse of official postttou during the period 2005· 2011 has been flied against IT officers and
Management of the company.

Further, Enforcement Directorate have made an allegation against directors for criminal conspiracy wtth dishonest lnrentton 10 cheat Andhra Bank and other public sector
Banks In relatlon to Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. This mailer Is sub-judice and the Impact, If any of the outcome Is unascertainable at thts stage.

On 28 June 2018, the Tarullnadu Pollurton Conrrol Board has Issued closure dtrecuou of the 001y unll of the company wlth the supularlon 10 lnstall and Implement Zero LIquid
Discharge ('ZLD) system In the Unlt, This requirement is for the reason that the Ooty being eco sensitive area and rhe permission 10discharge treated liquld/ water was In tbe
nearby dam, which bas been discontinued. The Corumtnee of Crednors (C~C) constituted under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIlU') has at lis meeting held on 4
September 2018 decided 10 iruplement the ZLD. The company has also approached Court and NGT to process the work in progress. NGT has directed 10 TNPCB 10 review and
decide on the same. The mailer is pendiug wlth the TNPeB now and the company 15 optimistic that some favorable decision will be taken by TNPCB In respect ofWIP.

32 The Company bas Incurred net loss during the current year and 10 the previous year and II,e Company's current ltabtltues have exceeded lis current assets as at the balance
sheet dale.

However, tbe pelilion was admitled by the Hon'ble Nartonal Company Law Tribunal, Mumbal Bench pursuant to an order dated Iltb [une, 20"18 aod corporate Insolvency
resolulion process was Initialed agatnst the Company under Sectlon 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Subsequesrly, rhe Resolution Professional look over the
management of the affairs of the Company.

The new manageruenr Is working towards a workable resolunon plan 10 resolve financial poshton willt lite lenders within tbe prescribed time limll and 10 continue us business
3S a golug concern.

Following are some of the highlights of the improvements which further substantiate the going concern assumplion:
I) The company has managed 10CUidown the purchase expenses by oegottarmg wtth the vendors.
JI) Masar Division has achieved the highest sales In Augllsl'18 and September' J 8 comparing past twelve mouths,
III) Due 10 locrease In production, sales and receivable, Masar& Karakhadt plants are able 10 manage their working capital requrreruents from rhetr inlernal accruals and the
casb accrual of company have gone up.

tv] The company has successfully retained and catered the gelati 11 requlreruent of 001y division from I<aral<badl dlvtston, of Ihe customers who were affected due to closure of
producllon facthry at Ooty. Company Is catering 10 the needs of 50 10 60 % of the Daly customer's requirement from Karakhadt.
v) Commit lee ofcredilors (CoC) of the company have passed resolutton dated Bth September, 2018 approving the iruplementatlon of Zero liquid Dlscharge for 001y Plant from
internal accruals of the corporate debtor / company.

Thus, On the basis of the grounds mentioned above, the fmanctal statements have been prepared 00 tbe going concero assumprton.

33 I( R I d b I d hey ores an Responst i ilies & Dala; Sources urlng I e FY 17·18:
Area of Work HO Karkhadl Masar 100ty
OveraU Accounl. and Finance & de"islons Promolers and Dlreclors till Augusl 2017
Finance & treasury· V.P. !'inance SanJ"y Sur-ma

Manlsh Shah #

AccounlS & Consolidalloo Glrlsb Riya ChaudJ,arl Ihlesh Modi D. Chaudrasekaran
jelhmalanl

Planl Heads N.A. Paw an Bhaloagar Salish Sbah C. Manokaran

#Mr. Manlsh is a consullanl·commerclal funcllons from Ihe pasl 15 years and IS working for slerllng BIotech hmlled and its group companies exclusively.

Mr. R.B.Dixll is an Independenl Director and bas refused 10 sign (or the currenl nnanclal year. No promoterdlreclors are presenlln India.

34 It is pertioeol 10nole tballhe Resolulion Professional made aU pracllcal and reasonable efforts frorn Ilrne 10 time 10 facililale InJomlation/dala from Ihe officials of Ihe Company
In rclalion 10 Ihe preparation of the finanCial stalemenlS of tbe company and also Ihe Inforrualion required by the audllors for Ihe purpose of canying out Ibe audil of Ihe
financial stalemenlS of Ihe Company. It is 10 be uOled Ihat Ihe ftoanclal stalcmenls for Ihe FY 2017·18 as well as the Informallon proVided 10 Ibe audilors far Ihe purpose of
audll of the sarue, pertain 10 the period prior 10 Ihe appoinrruenl of Ihe Hc,olullon Professional and IhereCore, whUe facUltaling Ihe c01leclioo and dlssemlnallon of the said
informalion, Ihe Resolullon Professional has relied upon and assumed Ihe accuracy/ vcraclly of data/lnformatioo prOvided by the officials of the Company, suspended
dlreclors, and long lerm consnltanls and the records of Ihe Company made available to tlte ResoluHon Professional, whleh Ihe Resolution Professional has assumed are in
confirrully wilh Ihe applicable law and present a Irue and fair view of lite posltloo oflhe Company as of 11Ie dales and for Ihe period Indica led Ihereln. The RP has nOI personaUy
verified the Information provided by the officials of Ihe Company and has placed confideuce In Ihe dala/ inSomlaliou prOVided 10 bim. The finanCial slateIDents have been
signed by Ihe Resolulloll Professional as no promoler direclor Is presenl In India and Ihe independenl direclor / direelors have refused 10 sign. Accordingly, the Resolution
Professional should be absolved from tbe accuracy, veracity and sufficieucy or completeness of such Informal ion. Readers and users oflbese slalemenl. are advised 10 do Ihelr
due dilIgence hefore arriving al any conclusions. The Resolullon Professional bas signed Ihe Financial SlalemenlS 10 filcUltale Ihe CIRP process and to facUllate the statutory

requiremelllswilhoul any liablltly oftite samc. ;, ~
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3S Previous period flgures

Previous period ligures have been regrouped / reclasslfted wherever necessary to correspond with the current period classlficatton / disclosure.

These are Ihe notes referred to In our report of even date.

Membership No. :107231

Place: Mumbal

C\l~ Date: \ S\\"l\'Lq\ S'
Mr. Sundalresh Shat
Reg ..No.18BlflPA-0011
1P-P00071/20 17 -18/1 0152



JHS & Associates LLP
Cbartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To
The Members of
Sterling Biotech Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sterling Biotech Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and t.oss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the year
ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as "financial Statements")

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company's Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

3. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company;
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

4. The Honorable National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (,NCL 1') on June 11, 2018
admitted the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ('CIRP') application filed
against the Company and appointed Mr. Sundaresh Bhat as the Resolution
professional ('RP') in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('the Code')
[NCL T order dated June 26, 2018 and taken over by RP on June 27, 2018}. Further,
the committee of creditors constituted during the CIRP has confirmed appointment of
Mr. Sundaresh Bhat as the RP to manage the affairs of the Company. In view, of the
pendency of the CIRP, the power and responsibilities of the Board of Directors shall
vest with the RP under the provision of the Code.
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Independent Auditors report of Sterling Biotech Limited on the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Auditor's Responsibility

5. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

6. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provrsions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

7. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether these financial statements are free from material misstatement

8. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

9. The Financial Statements provided to us for review have been signed only by the RP.
Section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires such signature to be undertaken
by (a) the chairperson of the company where he is authorized by the board, or by two
directors out of which one shall be managing director; and (b) the chief executive
officer, the Chief Financial officer and the Company Secretary, wherever they are
appointed. Since CIRP has been initiated, the RP, pursuant to his appointment, has
been vested with the management of the Company and the powers of the board of
directors of the Company stand suspended. Therefore, the Financial Statements has
been signed by the RP alone. Though the powers of the board of directors are
suspended, none of such directors of the Company were available/ agreeable to sign
the said Financial Statements.

The positions of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, as
on the date of signing of the Financial Statements were vacant. We understand that
the office of Chief Finance Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company is
vacant before the start of the year under audit. The Company has not appointed such
key managerial personnel as required under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointments and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014. As such, the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of
accuracy, veracity, sufficiency, completeness and reliability, as none of the key
managerial personnel of the Company other than RP has signed the Financial
Statements.

For the purpose of this audit review, we have relied upon the Financial Statements
provided to us by the RP. It is observed that the RP has inserted a note, as part of
notes to accounts, set out in Note 34 of financial statement, as per which he has

/assumed that the datal information provided by the officials of the Company and the
records of the Company made available to him are in conformity with the applicable
laws and present a true and fair view of the position of the Company and has not
personally verified such information; and that he should be absolved from the
accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or completeness of information provided to him by



Independent Auditors report of Sterling Biotech Limited on the financial statements as al and for the year ended March 31, 2018,

the officials of the Company basis which the Financial Statements have been
prepared. As per the said note, the RP has signed the Financial Statements only to
facilitate the CIRP process without any liability of the same. To the extent the RP has
disclaimed his liability with respect to accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or
completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company, the
Financial Statements may suffer from issues of accuracy, veracity, sufficiency,
completeness or reliability. Relevant observations upon the extent of veracity of the
Financial Statements have been made in the below paragraphs 10 -20 of this Section,

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

10. Carrying Value of Plant, Property and Equipment ('PPE')-
We have not been provided with the fixed assets register disclosing full particulars
including quantitative details, asset's physical location and the value of gross and net
block of the property plant and equipment owned by the Company.

The Company has detailed listing of all the plant and machineries installed at different
locations, however, in the absence of unique numbering system in place for identification
of fixed assets, it is not possible for us to trace the items of plant and machinery against
the listing provided to us by the Company, No listing for other items of PPE like vehicles,
furniture and fixtures and office equipment is currently available with the Company.

Further, in the absence of availability of gross value, opening net value and Management's
assessment of the estimated useful life for various items of PPE, we are not able to
comment on the adequacy and accuracy of the depreciation of Rs. 24,574.77 Lakh
charged for the year under audit.
In view of the limited information provided to us, we are unable to comment on the
existence and the value of PPE owned by the Company and carried at Rs. 248,812,15
Lakh as on the reporting date.

The Company has taken land on rent for a term of 99 years from Sterling SEZ and
Infrastructure Limited on March 26, 2010 on payment of premium of Rs. 6,462.68 Lakh. In
addition, an annual lease rental of Rs 1 per square meter amounting to Rs 4.36 Lakh. The
same is disclosed by the Company as owned assets reflected at carrying value of Rs
6,125.48 Lakh instead of operating lease as per the requirement of Ind AS 17 'Leases'. As
a result, the PPE is overstated by Rs. 6,125.48 Lakh.

An agreement to sell was entered into at Vadodara on November 19, 2015 by and
between Sterling Biotech Limited and Alembic Pharmaceuticals limited for sale of land
namely 782, 789, 791, 800, 801, 802, 818/B, 830/B/1, 830/B/2, 831/A, 831/B, and 832
defined specifically in annexure of the agreement for total consideration of 499.63 Lakh.
An amount of Rs 247.31 Lakh was received as advance for the aforementioned purpose
by Sterling in November 2015. The said land has been mortgaged to SREI Infrastructure
Finance Limited. The balance amount of Rs 249.81 Lakh was to be paid at the time of
completion of the sale and on Sterling delivering vacant and peaceful possession of the
said land along with necessary approvals. It was agreed that the transfer of the said land
shall be completed on or before November 18, 2017. As of the Balance sheet date, the
transfer of the land has not materialized and management is unable to share further
details on the outcome of the transfer.

11. Capital Work in Progress ('CWIP')-
The Company is in the process of setting up a new manufacturing facility at Baruch
district, Gujarat under approval reference no. SSEZIOC/U.A./03/09-10/09 dated 4th Sep
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the year under audit, based on our examination of available books and records, no further
work has been carried out at the said facility and the addition of Rs. 6,090.19 Lakh during
the year under the head CWIP comprises of only interest cost of External Commercial
Borrowing taken for setting up this facility and foreign exchange fluctuation on the same
(Refer Note no 3 of financial statement). There is no one on one mapping available to
establish that the proceeds from the external commercial borrowings are used for the
development of the said facility. Further the capitalization of entire foreign exchange
fluctuations is not in accordance to Ind AS 23. In view of all these factors, we are unable to
comment on the accuracy of the value of CWIP carried in the financial statements.

12. Carrying Value of Inventory -
We have been appointed as statutory auditors after March 31, 2018 and thus could not
observe the counting of physical inventories as at the end of the year. On the basis of
physical verification conducted by management, for the inventory of finished stock,
work in process and raw material held at reporting date and based on information and
explanations provided to us the carrying amount of inventory approximates to Rs
6,092.96 Lakh (Refer Note no 7 of financial statement). Further, we draw attention that
percentage completion and value of inventory of work in process and physical
condition of other items of inventory has not been certified by any technical expert. In
the absence of required information we are unable to comment on the carrying value of
inventory in the financial statements

13. Loans and Advances -
As at March 31, 2018, outstanding balance of advances given by the Company is
Rs. 33,567.31 Lakh (Refer Note no 11 to the financial statement) to various parties
including related parties for supply of goods and services, security deposits and others.
Based on the management assessment of these loans and advances, full amount is
treated as recoverable and considered good in the books of accounts. In the absence
of confirmations from these parties and non-availability of adequate information and
explanation from the management we are not able to comment on the recoverability of
these amounts.

14. Investments -
The Company has investments in shares of Companies which are not traded in an
active market amounting to Rs. 158,402.00 Lakh (Refer Note no 4' to the financial
statement). These investments include investment in equity shares of various Group
companies amounting to Rs. 156,115.89 Lakh. The Management have not provided
adequate fair valuation report and also not conducted any impairment testing of these
investments. In the absence of sufficient and reasonable audit evidence, market based
assumptions and adequate valuation; we are unable to comment on the fair value of
these investments

15. Deferred Tax Assets -
As at March 31, 2018, the Company has recognized deferred tax assets (net) of Rs.
81,285.56 Lakh in the financial statements (Refer note no. 5 of financial statement). In
the absence of reasonable certainty on realization of this asset against future taxable
profits of the Company, we are unable to comment on the carrying value of this asset
in the financial statements.

16. Loans, Borrowings and Corporate Guarantees -
As at March 31, 2018, the Company has reported loans, borrowings and external
commercial borrowings of Rs. 756,416.11 Lakh (Refer note no 14 of financial
statement) from various banks, financial institutions and other parties. Corporate
tnsolvency Resolution Process has been initiated against the Company by the NCL T and
the estimated amount of claims from financial creditors is Rs 1,493,866 Lakh and admitted
claim as per "List of Claims" is Rs 896,767.00 Lakh upto November 21, 2018. These
laims also includes claims admitted in relation to corporate guarantees provided by the

, ompany on behalf of group companies. In the absence of necessary information and
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in view, of the pendency of the CIRP, we are unable to comment on probability of
occurrence of any default and the actual liability that may devolve on the Company in
this regard.

17. Internal Controls -
As the Company has no documented control framework which includes standard
operating process for various areas of operations, risk control matrices, etc. and also
due to the inability of the management to substantiate that there is adequate internal
control that exist and operates effectively, we are unable to comment on the presence
and effectiveness of internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect any
material misstatement, fraud, errors and omissions.

18. Non Compliance with Ind AS -
The Company has not fully complied with all the requirements of the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the
financial statements are not Ind AS compliant (Refer note 2.1 of financial statement)

19. Non-Compliances -
We have not been provided with any documented framework to ascertain
completeness and timely compliance with the provisions of various applicable statutes.
Therefore, we are not able to comment on the completeness of compliances under
applicable statues. Further, during the course of our audit, we have observed few
instances of non-compliances with provisions of SEBI Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements and The Companies Act, 2013. Major non-compliances
observed are -

a) The Company has not prepared and presented Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 as required under Section 129 (3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

b) The Company has not appointed Internal Auditors as required by Section 138 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

c) As required by Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not
appointed full time Company Secretary.

d) As required by Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has not conducted audit of Cost
Records.

20. Disclaimer of Opinion
Because of the significance of matters described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion" paragraph above, we have not been able to obtain sufficient audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion. In the absence of the requisite information, the
impact of these matters on the financial statements as at March 31, 2018 cannot be
ascertained. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the aforesaid financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw an attention of the following matters in the financial statements:

21. Opening Balances
The financial statements of the Company for the corresponding year ended 31 March
2017 were audited by the predecessor Statutory Auditor, MIS. H. S. Hathi & Co., who
expressed unmodified opinion vide their report dated May 30, 2017 and reliance has

, .~ MSa:' been placed by us o~ the same for the purpose of this ~eport. We have been appointed
.::t:CO... . O'4t;oA' as the .Statutory A~dltors of the Company Vide resolution dated Augu~t 2, 2018 o~ the* ~\ 't, ~. rCommlttee of Creditors ('COC') meeting. We have performed our audit on the baSIS of

~ _ . ~ -~, books of accounts and other relevant records produced before us after the date of our

~u~~ 5/1£
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appointment and on the basis of explanation and information provided to us by the
Company and are not responsible for any events that occurred prior to our
appointment.

22. Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process - Andhra Bank ("AB"), in its capacity as the
Financial Creditor of Sterling Biotech Limited ("Corporate Debtor"), filed C. P. (I.B.)
490/MB/2018 of 2018 ("Petition") under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 ("IBC") read with Rule 4 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Application to
Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2016 before the Hon'ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e. National
Company Law Tribunal, at Mumbai ("Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai") for initiation of Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRpJI

) for the Corporate Debtor. The said Application of
Andhra Bank has since been admitted by the Hon'ble NCL T Mumbai vide its order dated
June 11, 2018 ("Order") and the CIRP has commenced from the date of the order.

The Hon'ble NCL T Mumbai vide its Order has inter alia appointed, Mr. Sundaresh Bhat
(having Insolvency Professional registration no. IBBIII PA-001 II P-N00077 12017 -18/10162)
as the Interim Resolution Professional ("IRP") to conduct the CIRP for the Company and to
exercise all powers and carry out all duties as envisaged under the provisions of the IBC.
As per Section 17(1) of the IBC, the management of the affairs of the Company now vests
with the undersigned IRP. All the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand
suspended and are now vested with and shall be exercised by the IRP.

The Government of India, Ministry of Corporate affairs vide order F No 3/197/2018-CLII
(WR) dated April 10, 2018 has ordered investigation into the affairs of the Company
under Sec 212(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 by Serious Fraud Investigation Office
and the Director, SFIO vide order no SFIO/lnv/A01/2017-18/1/13513/2018 dated 13-
Apr-2018 and has appointed Shri Dheeraj Kumar (Senior Assistant Director) as
Investigation Officer under Sec 212(4) of Companies Act, 2013.

First Information Report under Sec 154 of The Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973
suspecting criminal conspiracy and abuse of official position during the period 2005 -
2011 has been filled against Income Tax officers and Directors of the Company.

Further, Enforcement Directorate have made an allegation against directors for criminal
conspiracy with dishonest intention to cheat Andhra Bank and other public sector banks as
per applicable provisions of Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. This matter is
sub-judice and the impact, if any of the enquiry is unascertainable at this stage.

23. The manufacturing activities of the Ooty plant of the Company has been temporarily
discontinued due to alleged violation of environmental norms in the state of Tamil Nadu
with effect from June 23, 2018. The matter is currently under trial with the Environmental
Pollution Control Board of Tamil Nadu. As of December, 2018 temporary power has
been granted by the Environmental Pollution Control Board of Tamilnadu to enable the
plant convert the existing WIP into finished goods. This power facility is granted only
up to January 31, 2019. During this period no fresh purchases, production can be
undertaken by the plant. These facts casts material uncertainty about the functionality of
the Ooty plant in the near future. .

24. Going Concern - Management has prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis on the grounds stated in Note 30 of the financial statement in spite of
following facts and circumstances:

I. lhe Com.pany has incurred net losses of Rs. 100,538.51 Lakh during the
current year and the previous year of Rs. 41,245.50 Lakh

ii. The operating cash flows have turned negative during the current financial
year. Negative cash flow from operations are Rs. 3,280.60 Lakhs as against a
positive operating cash flow of Rs. 63.76 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

iii. The Company's current liabilities have exceeded its current assets as at the
balance sheet date by Rs. 514,189.46 Lakh.
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iv. National Company Law Tribunal has admitted petition for insolvency
proceedings initiated by the Financial and other Creditors against the
Company (Refer Note No, 1 to the Financial Statements)

25, Exceptional Losses during the year -
During the year under audit, the Company has provided for impairment of various
assets as detailed below:-(Refer Note no 29 of financial statement)

Particulars Impaired I Provided
during tile year
(In t.akh)

Inventory (a) 63,060,00
Miscellaneous Expenditure (b) 1:4,14-2.80
Others 26,53

!

Total impairment provision debited to the statement 77,229.33
of profit and loss I

(a) The management on the basis of physical verification of inventory conducted by
them had identified the shortage of inventory of work in process to the extent of
Rs. 63,060 Lakh. These shortage is adjusted in the books of accounts and the
amount written off is treated by the management as an exceptional item,

(b) The Company had incurred expenditure of Rs. 20,952.30 Lakh for process
improvements which were discontinued in the financial year 2013-2014 due to
non-adherence of pollution control norms for the Effluent Treatment Plant. The
Company had adopted the policy of amortizing this expenditure over a period of 10
years commencing from the financial year 2014-15, During the year under audit,
the Company has charged the balance unamortized amount of Rs 14,142.80 Lakh
to the statement of profit and loss

26. The Company has not provided for interest on derivative loss payable to JP Morgan
Chase from July t l,2017 to March 31, 2018. As a result, the losses for the year and
the liabilities for interest payable are understated to extent Rs. 352,54 Lakh

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

27. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

28. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

a. As described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have sought but
were unable to obtain all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether the Balance Sheet, Statement of
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Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d. Because of the significance of the matters described paragraphs 8 to 19 in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion and
state whether the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e. The matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the going concern of the Company;

f. We have not received any written representations from the directors regarding
disqualification of any directors as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. Further, as detailed out in para 4, the
powers of Board are suspended and Resolution Professional is in charge of the
affairs of the Company;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in "Annexure B";

h. With respect to the Other Matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether the financial statements
discloses the complete impact of pending litigations on its financial position;

ii. Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether the Company has made
provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred during the year to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 19, 2018
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
. Sterling Biotech Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2018

I. In respect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has not maintained proper records of fixed assets showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) We have not been provided reports of physical verification of fixed assets conducted
by the management during the financial year 2017-18 or any of the preceding years.
We have not been provided with the Company's policy on physical verification of
fixed assets, its frequency and its reasonableness having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on this
clause.

c) We have only been provided with title deed of Land held at Ooty, Jambusar &
Karakhadi. Title deed provided and verified by us are in the name of the Company.
However, in the absence of proper records of the fixed assets available with the
Company, it is not possible for us to comment on the completeness of the title deeds
for other immovable property, if any.

II. As informed to us, the inventories consisting of raw materials, work in process & finished
goods have been physically verified by the management once during the year. The
discrepancies noted on such verification are not material and have not been properly
dealt with in the books of the accounts. For identification on discrepancies, we have
relied on the physical verification report provided to us by the management.

III. In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Company to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), we have not been provided with the
required details. Further, we have not been provided with the updated Register under
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the provisions of
clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order.

IV. As no information relating to the interests of the Directors in other companies as
required under section 185 of the Act are made available to us, we are unable to
comment on the compliance with the provisions of the said section for the loans and
investments by the Company. The Company has advanced loans to certain parties on
which no interest has been charged, which is not in compliance with section 186 of the
Act.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (V) of the Order are not applicable.

VI. We have broadly reviewed the books of accou nt maintai ned by the Company pursuant
to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and we comment that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, in the
absence of proper records related to the Work in Progress and other records available
with the Company, it is not possible for us to comment on the completeness of these
cost records.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Goods & Services Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value
added tax, Cess, Service Tax, Income Tax, Sales Tax and other material statutory dues
were outstanding as at the yearend for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the records of
the Company, the details of disputed dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added fax as at March 31,2018 are as follows:

*Out of the above amounts payable reported, the company has paid Rs 7.56 Lakh to
various authorities under protest.

**The above figures exclude interest liability up to the reporting date under various
statues
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VIII. On the basis of information and explanations given to us the Company has made
following defaults in repayment of dues to the banks, financial institutions and debenture
holders during the financial year. The amount of defaults are as mentioned in the table
below:

I\mowlt of ddiJ1,llt <I~

r~'ilrticui;m on ~,iI~liCI:! $1,cl~ttJj)t~ PUl10cl or D-afault'

_________ (I~I L~k~15',
Allahabad Bank

6,459.17 1 Years 274 Days
13 945.87 3 Ye,afS 91 Days

Allaha~~nk HOI1BkonL_ 4:..::9.::c:G.~fi3~2_:_Ye=_:a:.:.:rs::...:1::....:4=__9:::_:Da::..rY:;:_s__

Andhra Bank' 25,361. 71 2Y~.a{.~ 19~ q~s_
jBank of Baroda 17,974.45 2 Years 305 Days
Bank Of Baroda London 12,658.77 2 Years 0 Days

IBank of India 15,819.21 2 Years 90 Days

IBank Q.f India - Jersey 10,607.17 2 Years 0 Days
jBank of_~_aharastra t696.72 5 Years 273 Da'r',..:_s__
IIDBI Bank Ltd 6i3~.Ei2 7 year~,.:l...:::D.:::_ayz..:::s_

llndianoverseaSBank 45,120.15 2.Year~9(J_Days ..
I i~~"~-~~s B;;~k'JL_ ~__ .z,480.37 2 Years 0 Days

Oriental Bank of Commerce 4,422.66 5 Years 336 Days
Punjab NationallBank 30,358 ..63 1 Years 364 Days
punjab National Bank - Hkg 6,397.21 2 Years 0 Days .
PLlnjab Nati~~ank - London 4,240.99 1 Years 274 Days I
?tate Bank of I ndiq ""__ ~,087.09 [2 Years ~??Q.a.~
State Bank of I ndia-OO min 29,513.49 2 Years 331 Da'r'~s__

~

S~c1lcate E!~!ik .._
Syndicate Bank - London
The Catholic Syrian Bank Ltd
The Lakshrnl Vilas Bank Ltd

l!:l_!?_F~_!:l_ank_
IJ M Financial Asset Reconstruction Co Ltd
jp Morgan

IUC-Non Convertible Debentures

14,028.24 5 Years 273 Days
19,109.12 5 Years 183 Days

2,496.14 1 Years 90 Days
1,536.55 3 Years 181 Days

13,647.49 5 Years 275 Days
37,033.69 6 Years 0 Days

3,8_51.79 2 Years 212 Days
1,615.58 It _ ..

~_!Q,6li.79 5 ygar~ 212 Days

5,884.64 Ii

13,329.65 7 Years 56 Days
4,28,104,66

Uco Bank

IViiey~ Bank

TOTAL

"The period of default is based on the information provided by the Company and no
independent specific confirmation from lenders of the above defaults was made
available to us by the Company.

#Sufficient evidence I information has not been provided by the Company to ascertain
the period of default

IX. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (ix) of the Order
are not applicable.

X. Based on audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements of the Company and based on records produced to us
and according to information and explanations provided to us, an FIR is registered by
the CBI, BS&FC on 25-10-2017 bearing no RCBD1/2017/E/0007 u/s 13(2) r/w 13 (1) (d)
of PC act, 1988 and 120B r/w 420, 467, 468 & 471 of IPC , 1860 against the Company,
Mr. Chetan Sandesara, Director, Mr. Nitin Sandesara, Director, Mr. Rajbhushan

mprakash Dixit, Director, Mr. Vilas Joshi, Director, former employees and key
management personnel of the Company for hatching criminal conspiracy with each
other with dishonest intention to cheat Andhra Bank and other public sector Banks.
Basis on the aforesaid FIR a case was taken up for investigation under the provisions of
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PMLA, 2002 by Head office of directorate of Enforcement on 27.10.2017. On the basis
of anther FIR by CBI dated 30-08-2017, a case was taken up for investigation by the
Head office of Directorate of Enforcement under provisions of PMLA, 2002 on 31-08-
2017. Prior to the said cases being taken up for investigation under PMLA, investigation
under FEMA, 1999 was also initiated as the Company had contravened RBI regulations
by raising FCCBs through automatic route and violated the FDI policy. All are subject
matter of investigations by the government authorities. The Government of India,
Ministry of Corporate affairs vide order F No 3/197/2018-CLII 0NR) dated 10-Apr-2018
has ordered investigation into the affairs of Sterling Biotech limited under sec 212(1) (c)
of Companies Act, 2013 by Serious Fraud Investigation Office and the Director, SFIO
vide order no SFlOllnv/AOll20 17-18/1/13513/2018 dated 13-Apr-2018 and has
appointed Shri Dheeraj Kumar (Senior Assistant Director) as Investigation Officer under
Sec 212(4) of Companies Act, 2013

First Information report under sec 154 Cr.P.C suspecting criminal conspiracy and abuse
of official position during the period 2005-2011 has been filled against IT officers and
Sterling Biotech Limited.

As the final outcome of all these investigations are pending with various agencies, we
are not able to comment on the implication of these frauds on the financial statements of
the Company.

XI. Based on the examination and verification of evidences provided by the Company, the
Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with
Schedule V to the Act with respect to requisite approvals mandated in the general
meeting for managerial remuneration paid andl or provided for in books of account.
Further, we have not been provided with appropriate evidences to establish the
genuineness of various expenditure incurred by the director's and recorded in books of
account.

XII. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XIII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us by the
management, as the register under section 189 has not been updated, we are unable to
comment on compliance with section 177 and Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to transactions with related parties. However, details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements as certified by
the management.

XIV. The Company has made private placement of unlisted 8% redeemable cumulative non-
participating non-convertible preference shares of Rs. 6,615 Lakh carrying no voting
rights, at par, to entities under common management during the year. (Refer Note. No.
13 to the financial statements). We have not been provided with sufficient audit evidence
to ascertain the end use of the monies raised during the year. Accordingly, we are
unable to comment on Clause 3(xiv) of the Order.

XV. According to the information and explanation provided to us by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with them. However, we are unable to corroborate the management
representation with sufficient and appropriate audit evidence and hence we are unable
to comment on Clause 3 (xv) of the Order.
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XVI. According to the information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, the Company is not required to obtain any registration under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For JiHS & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Re lstratlon No.: 133288WIW100.o99

Jignesh Thaker
Partner
Membership No.: 107231

Place:Mumbai
Date: December 19,2018
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
Sterling Biotech Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2018

Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of
March 31) 2018 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financla] Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In

accordance with authorizations of Management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.

The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting with regard to the
Company were not made available to us to enable us to determine if the Company has
established adequate internal financial control' over financial reporting and the
effects/possible effects of the material weakness on the achievement of the objectives of
the control criteria and whether such financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018 considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAI.

We have considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing and
extent of audit test applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the
disclaimer has affected our opinion on the financial statements of the Company and we
have issued a disclaimer opinion on the financial statements and we have issued a
disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements.

For JHS & Associates LLP

Place: Mumbai

Date: December 19, 2018


